EXHIBIT "C"

BYLAWS

DR BK 4526 P81017 Escasbia County, Florida INSTRUMENT 00-708459

DF

BAYOU PLACE OF ESCAMBIA COUNTY HOMEOWNERS ASSOCIATION, INC.

[A Corporation Not For Profit]

Article I - Name and Location

This corporation shall be known as BAYOU PLACE OF ESCAMBIA COUNTY HOMEOWNERS ASSOCIATION, INC., hereinafter referred to as the "ASSOCIATION." The principal office of the ASSOCIATION shall be located at 17 S. Palefox Street, Suite 394, Pensecola, Florida 32501, but meetings of members and directors may be held at such places within the State of Florida, County of Escambia, as may be designated by the Board of Directors.

Article II - Definitions

- Section 1. "DECLARATION" shall mean and refer to the Declaration of Covenants, Conditions and Restrictions applicable to the properties recorded in the office of the Clerk of the Circuit Court of Escambia County, Florida.
- Section 2. "MEMBER" shall mean and refer to those persons entitled to membership as provided in the Declaration.
- Section 3. All other terms used herein shall have the same definitions as set forth in the Declaration of Covenants, Conditions and Restrictions.

Article III - Mostings of Members

Section 1. Annual Meetings. The first annual meeting of the members shall be held within one (1) year from the date of incorporation of the ASSOCIATION, and each subsequent regular meeting of the members shall be held on the same day of the same month of each year thereafter, at the hour of 7 o'clock p.m., or on such other date as the Board of Directors may determine. If the day for the annual meeting of the members is a legal holiday, the meeting will be held at the same hour on the first day following which is not a legal holiday.

Section 2. Special Meetings. Special meetings of the members may be called at any time by the President or by the Board of Directors, or upon written request of

the members who are entitled to vote ten percent (10%) of all of the votes of the Class A membership.

OR BK 4526 PG1018

Section 3. Notice of Meetings. Written notice of each meeting of the members shall be given by, or at the direction of, the Secretary or person authorized to call the meeting, by mailing a copy of such notice, postage prepaid, at least fifteen [15] days before such meeting to each member entitled to vote thereat, addressed to the member's address last appearing on the books of the ASSOCIATION, or supplied by such member to the ASSOCIATION for the purpose of notice. Such notice shall specify the place, day and hour of the meeting, and, in the case of a special meeting, the purpose of the meeting.

Section 4. Quorum. The presence at the meeting of members entitled to cast, in person or by proxy, thirty percent (30%) of the total votes of all members at the time of the meeting shall constitute a quorum for any action except as otherwise provided in the Articles of Incorporation, the Declaration or these Bylaws. If, however, such quorum shall not be present or represented at any meeting, the members entitled to vote thereat shall have power to adjourn the meeting from time to time, without notice other than announcement at the meeting, until a quorum as aforesaid shall be present or be represented.

Section 5. Adjourned Meetings. If an annual meeting or special meeting is adjourned to a different date, time or place, then the new date, time or place must be announced at the meeting before it is adjourned. Otherwise, notice of the new time, place or date must be given in the same manner as required for the adjourned meeting.

<u>Section 6. Proxies</u>. At all meetings of members, each member may vote in person or by proxy. All proxies shall be in writing and filed with the Secretary. Every proxy shall be revocable and shall automatically cease upon conveyance by the member of his lot.

<u>Section 7.</u> <u>Voting.</u> At all meetings of members where a quorum has been attained, those members present in person or by proxy may vote in the manner set forth in the Declaration and a simple majority of the voting interests present in person or by proxy shall be required on any action unless otherwise provided in the Articles of Incorporation, the Declaration, or these Bylaws.

Article IV - Board of Directors

DR BK 4526 PG1019 Escambia County, Florida INSTRUMENT 00-708459.

- Section 1. Number. The affairs of this ASSOCIATION shall be initially managed by a Board of three [3] directors, who need not be members of the ASSOCIATION. There shall never be less than three [3] directors.
- Section 2. Term of Office. Directors shall be elected at the annual meeting and shall serve for a term of one [1] year or so long thereafter until their successors are duly elected.
- Section 3. Removal. Any Director may be removed from the Board, with or without cause, by a majority vote of the members of the ASSOCIATION. In the event of death, resignation or removal of a Director, his successor shall be selected by the remaining members of the Board and shall serve for the unexpired term of his predecessor.
- Section 4. Compensation. No Director shall receive compensation for any service he may render to the ASSOCIATION. However, any director may be reimbursed for his actual expenses incurred in the performance of his duties.
- Section 5. Action Taken Without a Meeting. The Directors shall have the right to take any action in the absence of a meeting which they could take at a meeting by obtaining the written approval of all the Directors. Any action so approved shall have the same effect as though taken at a meeting of the Directors.

Article V - Nomination and Election of Directors

- Section 1. Nomination. Nomination for election to the Board of Directors shall be made by a Nominating Committee. Nominations may also be made from the floor at the annual meeting. The Nominating Committee shall consist of a Chairman, who shall be a member of the Board of Directors, and two or more members of the ASSOCIATION. The Nominating Committee shall be appointed by the Board of Directors prior to each annual meeting of the members to serve from the close of such annual meeting until the close of the next annual meeting and such appointment shall be announced at each annual meeting. The Nominating Committee shall make as many nominations for election to the Board of Directors as it shall in its discretion determine, but not less than the number of vacancies that are to be filled. Such nominations may be made from among members or non-members.
- Section 2. Elections. Election to the Board of Directors shall be by secret written ballot. At such election, the members or their proxies may cast, in respect to

each vacancy, as many votes as they are entitled to exercise under the provisions of the Declaration. The persons receiving the largest number of votes shall be elected.

Cumulative voting is not permitted.

OR BK 4526 PG 1020

Escalbia County, Florida
INSTRUMENT 00-708459

Article VI - Meetings of Directors

- Section 1. Regular Meetings. Regular meetings of the Board of Directors shall be held at least annually, at such place and hour as may be fixed from time by resolution of the Board. Should said meeting fall upon a legal holiday, then that meeting shall be held at the same time on the next day which is not a legal holiday.
- Section 2. Special Meetings. Special meetings of the Board of Director shall be held when called by the President of the ASSOCIATION, or by any two (2) Directors, efter not less than three [3] days notice to each Director.
- Section 3. Notice to Members. All meetings of the Board of Directors shall be open to all members except meetings between the Board and its attorney to discuss proposed or pending litigation where the contents of the discussion would be governed by the attorney-client privilege. Notices of all board meetings must be posted in a conspicuous place in the subdivision at least 48 hours in advance of a meeting, except in an emergency. If notice is not posted in a conspicuous place in the subdivision, notice of each board meeting must be mailed or delivered to each member at least seven [7] days before the meeting, except in an emergency. If the meeting for which the notice is being provided shall be for the purpose of acting on assessments, the notice shall include a statement that assessments will be considered and the nature of the assessments to be considered.
- Section 4. Voting. Directors may not vote by proxy or by secret ballot at board meetings except a secret ballot may be used when electing officers.
- Section 5. Miscellaneous. The voting and notice requirements set forth in this Article shall also apply to the meetings of any committees authorized by the Board of Directors including the Architectural Review Committee.
- Section 6. Minutes. Minutes of all meetings of the Board of Directors and committees must be maintained in written form or in another form that can be converted into written form within a reasonable time. The minutes must reflect the action taken by the Board, or committee, including the recording of votes or the

DR BK 4526 PG1021 cambia County, Flori INSTRUMENT 00-708459

abstention from voting on each matter voted upon for each director present or for each committee member present.

Article VII - Powers and Duties of the Board of Directors Including Fiscal Matters

- Section 1. Powers. The Board of Directors shall have the power to:
- Adopt and publish rules and regulations governing the use of the common area and facilities;
- Suspend the voting rights and right to use the recreational facilities of a member during any period in which such member shall be in default in the payment of any assessment levied by the ASSOCIATION.
- Exercise for the ASSOCIATION all powers, duties and authority vested in or delegated to this ASSOCIATION and not reserved to the membership by other provisions of these Bylaws, the Articles of Incorporation, or the Declaration;
- Declare the office of a member of the Board of Directors to be vacant in the event such member shall be absent from three (3) consecutive regular meetings of the Board of Directors; and
- Employ a manager, an independent contractor or such other employees as they deem necessary, and to prescribe their duties.

Section 2. Duties. It shall be the duty of the Board of Directors to:

- Make available to lot owners and lenders and to holders, insurers or guarantors of any first mortgage, current copies of the Declaration, Bylaws, other rules concarning the project and the books, records and financial statements of the ASSOCIATION. "Available" means available for inspection, upon request, during normal business hours or under other reasonable circumstances;
- Supervise all officers, agents and employees of this ASSOCIATION. Ъ. and to see that their duties are properly performed;
 - As more fully provided in the Declaration, to:

- 1. Fix the amount of the annual assessment against each lot at least thirty (30) days in advance of each annual assessment period;

 OR BK 4526 PG1022

 Escappia County, Florida INSTRUMENT 00-708459
- Send written notice of each assessment to every owner subject thereto at least thirty (30) days in advance of each annual assessment period; and
- 3. Foreclose the lien against any property for which assessments are not paid within thirty (30) days after due date or to bring an action at law against the owner personally obligated to pay the same.
- d. Issue, or to cause an appropriate officer to issue, upon demand by any person a certificate setting forth whether or not any assessment has been paid. A reasonable charge may be made by the Board for the issuance of these certificates. If a certificate states en assessment has been paid, such certificate shall be conclusive evidence of such payment.
- e. Procure and maintain in effect casualty and liability insurance and fidelity bond coverage together with such additional coverages as the ASSOCIATION's Board of Directors may determine;
 - f. Cause the common area and properties to be maintained;
- g. Cause to be kept a complete record of all of its acts and corporate affairs and to present a statement thereof to the members at the annual meeting of the members, or at any special meeting when such statement is requested in writing by one-fourth of the Class A members who are entitled to vote.
- Section 3. Budgets. The ASSOCIATION shall prepare an annual budget. The budget must reflect the estimated revenues and expenses for that year and the estimated surplus or deficit as of the end of the current year. The ASSOCIATION shall provide each member with a copy of the annual budget or a written notice that a copy of the budget is available upon request at no charge to the member within ten [10] business days after receipt of a written request therefor.
- Section 4. Financial Reporting. The ASSOCIATION shall prepare an annual financial report within sixty (60) days after the close of the fiscal year. The ASSOCIATION shall, within ten (10) business days after completion of the annual financial report, provide each member with a copy of the annual financial report or a

OR BK 4526 P61023 Excambia County, Florida INSTRUMENT 00-708459

written notice that a copy of the financial report is available upon request at no charge to the member. The financial report must consist of either:

- (a) Financial statements presented in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles; or
- (b) A financial report of actual receipts and expenditures, cash basis, which report must show:
 - The amount of receipts and expenditures by classification; and
 - 2. The beginning and ending cash balances of the ASSOCIATION.

Article VIII - Officers and Their Duties

- Section 1. Enumeration of Officers. The officers of this ASSOCIATION shall be a President, who shall at all times be a member of the Board of Directors, a Secretary, and a Treasurer, which may be combined, and such other officers as the Board may from time to time by resolution create.
- Section 2. Election of Officers. The election of officers shall take place at the annual membarship meeting.
- Section 3. Term. The officers of this ASSOCIATION shall be elected amoually by the Board and each shall hold office for one [1] year unless he shall sconer resign, or shall be removed, or otherwise disqualified to serve.
- Section 4. Special Appointments. The Board may elect such other officers as the affairs of the ASSOCIATION may require, each of whom shall hold office for such period, have such authority, and perform such duties as the Board may from time to time determine.
- Section 5. Resignation and Removal. Any officer may be removed from office with or without cause by the Board. Any officer may resign at any time giving written notice to the Board, the President or Secretary. Such resignation shall take effect on the date of receipt of such notice or at any later time specified therein, and unless otherwise specified therein, the acceptance of such resignation shall not be necessary to make it effective.

Section 6. Vecancies. A vacancy in any office may be filled by appointment by the Board. The officer appointed to such vacancy shall serve for the remainder of the term of the officer he replaces.

OR BK 4526 P61024

Escasbia County, Florida
INSTRUMENT 00-708459

Section 7. Multiple Offices. The offices of Secretary and Treasurer may be held by the same person. No person shall simultaneously hold more than one of any of the other offices except in the case of special offices created pursuant to Section 4 of this Article.

Section 8. Duties. The duties of the officers are as follows:

President: The President shall preside at all meetings of the Board of Directors: shall see that orders and resolutions of the Board are carried out; shall sign all leases, mortgages, deeds and other written instruments and shall co-sign all checks and promissory notes;

<u>Vice-President</u>: If desired, the Board may elect a Vice-President who shall act in the place and stead of the President in the event of his absence, inability or refusal to act, and shall exercise and discharge such other duties as may be required of him by the Board;

Secretary: The Secretary shall record the votes and keep the minutes of all meetings and proceedings of the Board and of the members; keep the corporate seal of the ASSOCIATION and affix it on all papers requiring said seal; serve notice of meetings of the Board and of the members; keep appropriate current records showing the members of the ASSOCIATION together with their addresses; and shall perform such other duties as required by the Board;

Treasurer: The Treasurer shall receive and deposit in appropriate bank accounts all monies of the ASSOCIATION and shall disburse such funds as directed by resolution of the Board of Directors; shall sign all checks and promissory notes of the ASSOCIATION; keep proper books of account; cause an annual audit of the ASSOCIATION books to be made by a public accountant at the completion of each fiscal year; and shall prepare an annual budget and a statement of income and expanditures to be presented to the membership at its regular annual meeting and deliver a copy of each to the members.

Article IX - Official Records

Section 1. The ASSOCIATION shall maintain each of the following items which constitute the "Official Records" of the ASSOCIATION:

- (a) Copies of any plans, specifications, permits and warranties relating to improvements constructed on the Common Area or other property that the ASSOCIATION is obligated to maintain, repair or replace.

 ON BK 4526 PGI 025
 Escalbia County, Florida
- (b) A copy of the Bylaws of the ASSOCIATION and of each amendment thereto.
- (c) A copy of the Articles of Incorporation of the ASSOCIATION and each amendment thereto.
- (d) A copy of the Declaration of Covenants, Conditions and Restrictions for the Subdivision.
- (e) A copy of the current rules of the ASSOCIATION.
- [f] The minutes of all meetings of the Board of Directors and of the members and of any committees appointed by the Board which minutes must be retained for at least seven [7] years.
- (g) A current roster of all members and their mailing addresses and lot designations.
- (h) All of the ASSOCIATION's insurance policies or a copy thereof, which policies must be retained for at least seven [7] years.
- (i) A copy of all contracts to which the ASSOCIATION is a party, including, without limitation, any management agreement, lease, or other contract under which the ASSOCIATION has an obligation or responsibility. Bids received by the ASSOCIATION for work to be performed must also be considered Official Records and must be kept for a period of one [1] year.
- (j) The financial and accounting records of the ASSOCIATION, kept according to good accounting practices. All financial and accounting records must be maintained for a period of at least seven (7) years. The financial and accounting records must include:
 - 1. Accurate, itemized and detailed records of all receipts and expenditures.

OR BK 4526 P61026 Escarbia County, Florida INSTRUMENT 00-708459

- A current account and periodic statement of the account for 2. each member, designating the name and current address of each member who is obligated to pay assessments, the due date and amount of each assessment or other charge against the member, the date and amount of each payment. · on the account, and the balance due.
- All tax returns, financial statements and financial reports of 3. the ASSOCIATION.
- Any other records that identify, measure, record, or. 4. communicate financial information.

The Official Records shall be maintained within the state and must Section 2. be open to inspection and evailable for photocopying by members or their authorized agents at reasonable times and places within ten (10) business days after receipt of a written request for access. This Section may be complied with by having a copy of the Official Records available for inspection or copying in the subdivision.

Section 3. The Board of Directors may adopt reasonable written rules governing the frequency, time, location, notice and manner of inspections, and may impose fees to cover the costs of providing copies of the Official Records, including, without limitation, the cost of copying. The ASSOCIATION shall maintain an adequate number of copies of the recorded governing documents, to insure their availability to members and prospective members, and may charge only its actual costs for reproducing and furnishing these documents to those persons who are entitled to receive them.

Article X - Assassments

As more fully provided in the Declaration, each member is obligated to pay to the ASSOCIATION annual and special assessments which are secured by continuing lien upon the property against which the assessment is made. Any assessments which are not paid when due shall be delinquent. If the assessment is not paid within thirty [30] days after the due date, a late charge of ten percent (10%) of the assessment amount shall be due and the assessment shall bear interest from the date of delinquency at the highest rate allowed by law. If the assessment is not paid within thirty (30) days after the due date, the Board of Directors, through its officers, may cause to be filed in the public records of Escambia County. Florida, a lien certificate evidencing the lien against the lot as provided for in the Declaration. The ASSOCIATION may bring an action at law against the member personally obligated to pay the assessment or foreclose the lien against the property, and all interest, costs and reasonable attorney's fees of either

such action shall be added to the amount of such assessment and shall be included in the lien. No member may waive or otherwise escape liability for the assessments provided for herein by non-use of the common properties or abandonment of his lot.

Article XI - Corporate Seal

INSTRUMENT 00-708459

The ASSOCIATION shall have a seal in circular form having within its circumference the words: BAYOU PLACE OF ESCAMBIA COUNTY HOMEOWNERS ASSOCIATION, INC., a Florida Corporation Not for Profit.

Article XII - Amendments

Section 1. These Bylaws may be amended, at a regular or special meeting of the members, by a majority vote of members at a duly called meeting at which a quorum is present in person or by proxy, except that the Federal Housing Administration or Veterans Administration shall have the right to veto amendments while there is Class B membership.

Section 2. In the case of any conflict between the Articles of Incorporation and these Bylaws, the Articles shall control; and in the case of any conflicts between the Declaration and these Bylaws, the Declaration shall control.

Section 3. No amendment which affects the Declarant's rights prior to the owners obtaining control of the ASSOCIATION shall be effective without the written consent of the Declarant.

Article XIII - Committee

The ASSOCIATION shall appoint an architectural control committee as provided in the Declaration and a nominating committee as provided in these Bylaws. The initial members of the erchitectural control committee shall be as set forth in the Declaration and they shall continue to serve until removed by the Board of Directors, subject to the limitations and provisions set forth in the Declaration. In addition, the Board of Directors shall appoint other committees as deemed appropriate to carry out its purposes.

IN WITHESS WHEREOF, the undersigned has hereunto set its hand and seal this day of Helittle

Signed, sealed and delivered in the presence of:

Signal .

STATE OF FLORIDA COUNTY OF ESCAMBIA OR BK 4526 P61026 Escapbia County, Florida INSTRUMENT 00-708459

BAYOU PLACE HOMEOWNERS ASSOCIATION INC., # Elorida

Corporation for Profit

Den Gilmore, as Secretary

MAR ALMOMAN MICK

personally known to me.

NOTARY PUBLIC

F:\USERS\JM8\Bayou Fiece\Bylaws.wpd

RCD Feb 22, 2000 12:27 pm Escambia County, Florida

Ernie Lee Magaha Clerk of the Circuit Court INSTRUMENT 00-708459

GUARANTEE OF ROADS AND DRAINAGE IMPROVEMENTS

BY:	RGB Development, Inc.	OR BK 4526 P61 029 Escambia County, Florida INSTRUMENT 00-708460
IN:	Bayou Place	
	10 1 5 1 1	•

RGB Development, Inc. ("Company"), a corporation duly organized and existing under the laws of the State of Florida and doing business in the State of Florida, has undertaken to develop and construct certain roads and drainage structures, more particularly described as follows:

See Exhibit A attached hereto

Company (hereinafter referred to as "Guarantor") wish to have the roads and drainage improvements dedicated to the public and accepted by Escambia County, a political subdivision of the State of Florida, with County standards, and a condition of the County accepting the roads and drainage improvements for maintenance is that Guarantor agrees to guarantee the roads and drainage improvements for a period of two (2) years from the date of acceptance by the County.

In order to have the roads and drainage improvements accepted by the County, Guarantor, for the benefit of the County, enters into this Agreement with the County, guaranteeing the roads as follows:

- 1. Guarantor guarantees that it shall, for a period of two (2) years from the date of the acceptance of the above referenced roads and drainage improvements by the County, make good all defects on account of the workmanship or materials which may exist in said roads.
- If, in the reasonable judgment of the County Engineers, repairs or renewals become. necessary under this Agreement, then upon notice from the County at any time during the guaranteed period, said repairs or renewals shall be promptly made and at the expense of Guarantor, who shall take out and remove all inferior or defective material found in any of the work done by it and replace the same with good and acceptable material and work necessary to bring such pavement into substantial compliance with the plans and specifications provided the time of original approval.
- If County ever has to file a judicial action to enforce any provision of this guarantee, then the prevailing party will be entitled to its costs, including reasonable attorney's fees through appeal, if necessary, that it may have incurred in such action. Each party to this guarantee agrees that venue for any such judicial action shall lie in Escambia County, Florida.

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OR ESCAMBIA COUNTY, BCC APPROVED 2/ Gilmore

ATTEST: Emic Lee Magaha Clerk of the Circuit Court

Parcel One:

BEGINNING AT THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF THE JOSEPH POL GRANT, SECTION 37, TOWNSHIP 2 SOUTH, RANGE 31 WEST; THENCE SOUTH 14 DEGREES EAST ALONG THE EAST LINE OF SAID SECTION A DISTANCE OF 1980 FEET; THENCE RUN SOUTH 76 DEGREES WEST A DISTANCE OF 2780 FEET; THENCE RUN SOUTH 14 DEGREES EAST A DISTANCE OF 611.8 FEET FOR A POINT OF BEGINNING; THENCE CONTINUE SOUTH 14 DEGREES EAST A DISTANCE OF 2028.2 FEET; THENCE RUN NORTH 76 DEGREES EAST 63.6 FEET; THENCE NORTHERLY A DISTANCE OF 2028.2 FEET TO A POINT 81.4 FEET EAST OF THE POINT OF BEGINNING; THENCE RUN SOUTH 76 DEGREES WEST A DISTANCE OF 81/4 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING, ALL LYING AND BEING IN ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA.

Parcel Two:

BEGINNING AT THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF THE JOSEPH POL GRANT, SECTION 37, TOWNSHIP 2 SOUTH, RANGE 31 WEST; THENCE SOUTH 14 DEGREES EAST ALONG THE EAST LINE OF SAID SECTION A DISTANCE OF 1980 FEET; THENCE RUN SOUTH 76 DEGREES WEST A DISTANCE OF 2780 FEET; THENCE RUN SOUTH 14 DEGREES EAST A DISTANCE OF 583.24 FEET TO THE SOUTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF MULDOON ROAD (66' R/W) AND THE POINT OF BEGINNING; THENCE CONTINUE SOUTH 14 DEGREES EAST A DISTANCE OF 2409.02 FEET; THENCE RUN SOUTH 75 DEGREES 39 MINUTES 59 SECONDS WEST A DISTANCE OF 1042.77 FEET TO THE WEST LINE OF SAID SECTION 37: THENCE NORTHERLY ALONG SAID WEST SECTION LINE AND THE SCUTHERLY EXTENSION OF THE WEST LINE OF COUNTRY MANOR ESTAES AS RECORDED IN PLAT BOOK 9 AT PAGE 16 OF THE PUBLIC RECORDS OF SAID COUNTY NORTH 14 DEGREES 20 MINUTES 01 SECONDS WEST A DISTANCE OF 1925.24 FEET TO THE AFOREMENTIONED SOUTHERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY OF MULDOON ROAD; THENCE NORTH 51 DEGREES 04 MINUTES 15 SECONDS EAST A DISTANCE OF 1162.25 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING, ALL LYING AND BEING IN ESCAMBIA COUNTY.

RCD Feb 22, 2000 12:27 pm . Escambia County, Florida

Ernie Lee Magaha Clerk of the Circuit Court INSTRUMENT 00-708460